
MASTER PLAN STEERING COMMITTEE  

TOWN OF PETERBOROUGH, New Hampshire 

Minutes of September 26, 2016  

Members Present: Sue Chollet, Beth Alpaugh-Cote, Tyler Ward, Ivy Vann, 
Teresa Cadorette, and James Kelly 

Staff Present: Peter Throop, Director, Laura Norton, Administrative Assistant, 
Office of Community Development 

Master Plan Steering Committee Co-Chair Alpaugh-Cote (Ms. Alpaugh-Cote) 
called the meeting to order at 5:45 p.m. and welcomed the members and suggested 
they take a few moments+ to review the Minutes of September 28th as they did not 
e-mail correctly.  

Minutes: 

A motion was made/seconded (Vann/Chollet) to approve the Minutes of 
September 28, 2016 as written with all in favor. 

Economic Vitality Update: 

Mr. Throop gave a brief update of the progress the Economic Vitality 
Subcommittee had achieved to date including conducting needs assessment 
interviews of local businesses. “They had done three interviews and are sharing 
their reports and experience” he said. He noted a total of 25 businesses have been 
targeted “but the list keeps growing” he said. 

Mr. Throop also noted the hiring of an intern (Kristin Bixby) who has done some 
research and data collection for EDA goals and will be available to do so in the 
future. “She has also been taking minutes at the business interviews and doing a 
great job” he said. A member suggested the intern update the Business Atlas in 
town and when Mr. Throop noted she had assisted in research on the buildout on 
the Comcast Contract issue and that she also had good GIS skills, Ms. Vann 
suggested a value-per-acre analysis for the town as well. “That would be incredibly 
valuable in figuring out where our money is coming from on the tax rolls” she said. 
Ms. Chollet asked “would that be included in the Economic Vitality Chapter?” Ms. 
Vann replied “it could be.” 

 
 



2 
 

2 
 

Mr. Throop went on to note a Press Release explaining what was happening with 
the EDA Consultant position voted on at Town Meeting. “Essentially the EDA 
came out of the Vision Chapter update and developed a strategic plan and went to 
the town to ask for money to implement it. When the amount was raised for 
$45,000 to $70,000 we basically had to ask now what do we do?” He gave a brief 
history of conversations with and advice received from economic development 
experts including Carmen Lorenz of the NH Division of Economic Development, Jack 
Dugan from Monadnock Economic Development, the UNH Cooperative Extension 
Community and Economic Development Program, and the UNH Economic 
Development Academy.  “The advice we received suggested that we might not want to 
go out and hire a Coordinator.” He went on to explain “hiring a generalist who may not 
have the special skills for specific tasks may not be the way to go” adding “stepping 
back from the organic Strategic Plan that the EDA did, we might want to consider an 
economic development framework and focus on proven strategies and tools, 
workforce development, quality of place with place-based development and 
making business technical assistance available. Identify potential projects, 
prioritize and sequence them, then hire the specialist needed.” 
 
Ms. Chollet requested an update on the Nashua Community College with Mr. 
Throop replying “evidently community colleges are governed by the Community 
College System of New Hampshire.” He went on to note an acquaintance of his 
(Jack Calhoun) was on the Board of Trustees and he had already contacted him 
about a meeting with him. He noted the Site Selectin Committee had postponed 
their meeting to collect additional data on the demographics of the towns 
surrounding Peterborough. Ms. Cholet asked “is there any reason to think things 
won’t be positive?” Mr. Throop replied “No, but I would like to speak with Jack to 
identify leverage points and lobby so that we get a decision we will be excited 
about.” He concluded by noting letters of support had been written by the EDA, 
the Planning Board, the Board of Selectmen and Town Administrator Rodney 
Bartlett. Ms. Vann added “and as a State Rep I have also written a letter of 
support.”  

Before moving on Mr. Kelly asked “what about the agriculture side of things?” Mr. 
Throop replied “we do need to bring that back in.” A brief discussion about the 
Agriculture Committee followed with Tyler Ward (as the Committee’s Board of 
Selectmen Liaison) noting that group had dissipated in membership “but there is a 
meeting soon with some interested new people.” 

When Ms. Alpaugh-Cote asked for clarification on the build out (build out of 
broadband services, not density) Ms. Vann interjected “I think it is a utility and it is 



3 
 

3 
 

high time we fund it like one.” Dr. Cadorette told Mr. Throop about Regional 
Comcast Field Representative Paul Bell.  

New Village Project Update: 

Ms. Chollet and Ms. Vann updated the members on the project noting they had 
another meeting tomorrow, “where we hope to see the first iteration of the zoning” 
said Ms. Chollet adding “it is purely a draft that has been built on input from the 
town.” She also noted a public workshop at 6:30 p.m. in Bass Hall on November 
10th followed by another workshop at 1:00 p.m. in the Town Hall (Upper Hall) on 
November 17th.  Ms. Vann added “we will have some drawings to look to look at 
as well because it is easier to write code if you can look at what you are trying to 
make.” 

Before moving on Mr. Throop briefly spoke about the new Peterborough Welcome 
Team and their Meet & Greet Event scheduled for November 4th.  

Timing of Next Chapter to take on (Housing vs. Municipal Facilities):  

As Ms. Chollet began by noting they had not heard back from Rodney Bartlett, Mr. 
Throop interjected “I have his report.” Mr. Throop went on to note Mr. Bartlett did 
not see any advantages to starting the Municipal Facilities Chapter before March of 
next year. He also noted Mr. Bartlett had charged the Fire Department to do a 
needs assessment to figure out what is appropriate for the town. Mr. Throop 
explained other factors including DPW having to complete the Waste Water 
lagoon restoration project before they could think about a Public Works Garage in 
that location and the fact that the Police Department’s needs seem to be fulfilled 
(right where they are) for the next several years. Mrs. Chollet noted “so probably 
Housing is next.”   

Mr. Throop told the members “we have a lot of data collected and research by the 
current Economic Vitality Subcommittee for the initiative we are looking at now” 
adding “and the idea is to start in January.” He went on to give the members a brief 
summary of the progress made by the Economic Vitality subcommittee including 
the completion of several business needs assessment interviews. Ms. Vann noted 
the New Village Project would also be wrapping up in the same timeline. Ms. 
Chollet noted the focus on Municipal Facilities could begin in May or June. Dr.  
Cadorette noted it made sense to do the Housing Chapter first. The municipal 
facilities will be different than what we have now if our housing is different” she 
said. A brief discussion about what types of combinations the municipal complex 
may house followed.  



4 
 

4 
 

Going back to housing Mr. Ward asked if there were any builders interested in 
building affordable housing with Ms. Vann replying “the answer is to rehabilitate 
if you can and make sure municipal overhead is not punishing – by zoning 
amongst other things.” Ms. Chollet pointed out working on the New Village 
Project and how to unconstrict in such a way to make affordable housing a possible 
outcome may not be easy. “It is a free market and people are people” she said. 

Request from Jeanne Dietsch on How to Benchmark Quality of Life: 

Mr. Throop noted an email from Economic Vitality subcommittee member Jeanne 
Dietsch to assist the EDA in choosing measurements that can be used to track 
progress for their most qualitative goal - “Retain the Monadnock aesthetic, natural 
environment, culture and village life.”  

Noting the request was interesting Ms. Chollet pointed out that quality of life 
differs from person to person.  Dr. Cadorette interjected “how is that a goal of the 
EDA?” Mr. Throop replied by noting the EDA’s Mission Statement to strengthen 
the economic vitality of the town while retaining and enhancing the physical, 
cultural, social, recreational and environmental character of the town. He went on 
to say “we want economic vitality but we don’t want to throw the baby out with 
the bathwater.” A brief discussion about two factions (those who are 
environmentalists and want to protect nature at all costs and those who are business 
minded and want to grow business and industry) followed. Ms. Chollet noted the 
two groups used to be mutually exclusive “but we can have both” she said. Ms. 
Vann suggested looking at zoning changes as being a way to protect growth. “A 
pattern we already know and love in appropriate places (with water and sewer) 
versus rural sprawl” adding “and remember development always happens 
incrementally.” Mr. Throop noted a large landowner in the south may soon be 
interested in developing land for residential and mixed uses, raising questions 
about redevelopment and suggested a corridor study by DOT “at the risk of 
looking like Merrimack.” Ms. Vann reiterated her attempts to make DOT acutely 
aware of the problems and maintaining a safe pedestrian environment. “We value 
our brand and want to be here to reinforce that brand” she said adding “and with a 
set of standards, it is not as hard as it appears to do. Mr. Kelly agreed noting “I 
think safety is important.” Ms. Vann replied the cars rush through. That is what 
DOT does, they move the vehicles as fast as they can. They do not care and are not 
interested in the pedestrian environment which is not the safest in the confines of a 
small town.” 



5 
 

5 
 

Before adjourning Ms. Chollet reviewed the plan to begin making calls to recruit 
members for the Housing subcommittee in January. “In February we will put an 
advertisement in the paper for anyone interested in being on the subcommittee” she 
said adding “in the mean time we will be  taking a hard look at housing and what 
we need to do to give them a head start in November and December.” She 
concluded “hopefully, just like the Economic Vitality Development, it will take on 
a life of its own. I am thrilled to give them a head start and see them take it and run 
with it.” Agreeing, Mr. Throop added “develop the charge. That would be a good 
use of our time at our November meeting.” 

Ms. Chollet briefly reviewed the agenda items for the next meeting including 
updates of the Economic Vitality Subcommittee and New Village Project as well 
as a reminder of the workshop on November 10th.  Ms. Vann added “and we will sit 
tight on the Municipal Facilities Chapter until March or April while we get through 
all the stuff for Town Meeting.” “Makes sense to me” replied Ms. Chollet.  

Next Meeting: 

Wednesday, November 30, 2016 at 5:45 p.m.  

The meeting adjourned at 6:55 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
Laura Norton 
Administrative Assistant 


	MASTER PLAN STEERING COMMITTEE
	TOWN OF PETERBOROUGH, New Hampshire
	Minutes of September 26, 2016
	Staff Present: Peter Throop, Director, Laura Norton, Administrative Assistant, Office of Community Development

